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FAULK&V VINKLER 
CPAs - BLISINESS ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners 
East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority, 

D/B/A Build Baton Rouge 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate fund information of the EAST BATON ROUGE 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE (the Authority) as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Authority, as of December 31, 2023, and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS), the Louisiana Governmental Audit. Guide, and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Authority, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditors' report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, the Lo Governmental Audit Guide. and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In perfbrming an audit in accordance with GAAS. the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide and 
Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throuehout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regardine the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sipificant 
accounting estimates made hy manaeement. as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether. in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggreeate. 
that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified durine the audit. 

Required Supplementa Q.  Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
inanagement's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison and other information on pages 4 
through 10 and Exhibits B and B-1, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required hy the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the hasic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. 



We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The schedule of compensation, 
benefits and other payments to agency head on page 39 is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency 
head is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 
2024, on our consideration of the Authority, internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Governrnent Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

L ci,„Ltt- cl) 
Certified Public Accountants 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 24, 2024 

LL-C. 
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EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPNIENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our analysis of the East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority DIB/A Build Baton Rouge (the 
Authority) financial performance provides an overview of the Authority's financial activities for the 
year ended December 31, 2023. The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to 
focus on the current year's activities. resulting changes, and currently known facts. This MD&A should 
be read in conjunction with the financial statements which begin on Exhibit A. 

FINAN(:IAL HIGHLIGHTS 

In 2023, the Authority's governmental revenues decreased by 26% from the prior year and the 
governmental expenses decreased by 41% from the prior year. The decrease in revenues and expenses 
were driven by the decrease in activity related to the Advancing Cities Grant received by JPMorgan 
Chase Foundation. The business-type revenues increased 52% from the prior year and the business-type 
expenses increased by 222%. 

The major financial highlights for 2023 are as follows: 

Gov ernm ent-wide financial statements 

• The Authoritvi,, total net pw,ition at vear-end for the primary government was over $6.4 

• 2023 revenues exceeded expenses which resulted in an increase to net position of 
approximately $184.000 for the primary government. 

Fund tinancial statements 

• The Authority's General Fund operations reported an excess of revenues over expenditures of 
approximately $206.000 for 2023. The General Fund's fund balance was approximately 
$1,117.000 as of December 31, 2023. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The Authority's tinancial statements focus on the government as a whole and on major individual funds. 
Both government-wide and fund perspectives allow the reader to address relevant questions, broaden a 
basis tbr comparison from year to year. and enhance the Authmity's accountability. 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities (on pages 11 and 12) provide infortnation about the activities of the Authority 
as a whole and present a longer-tertn view of the Authority's tinances. 
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Fund financial statements start on page 13. For governmental activities. these statements depict how 
services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for fLiture spending. Fund tinancial 
statetnents also report the Authority's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by 
providing information about the Authority's most significant funds. 

The Authority's auditor has provided assurance in their independent auditors' report, located 
immediately preceding this MD&A, that the financial statements are fairly presented in all material 
respects. Varying degees of assurance are being provided by the auditor regarding the Required 
Supplementary Infbrmation. A user of this report should read the independent auditors' report carefully 
to ascertain the level of assurance being provided for each part of this report. 

Reporting on the Authority as a Whole 

The tinancial statements of the Authority as a whole begin on page I 1. The Statement of Net Position 
and the Statement of Activities report information ahout the Authority as a whole and its activities in a 
wav to determine if the Authority is in better condition. compared to the prior vear. These statements 
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual hasis of accounting. which is similar to accountine 
methods used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are 
reported regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in these 
statements for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

These two statements report the Authority's net position and related changes. The Authority's financial 
health. or financial position. can be measured by its net position—the difference between assets and 
deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred intlows of resources. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the Authority's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the Authority's operations are divided 
into two kinds of activities: 

Governmental activities — consist of the General Fund and special revenue funds. The General Fund 
accounts for unrestricted revenue sources as well as eeneral operational expenses. The special revenue 
funds account for receipts and expenditures of grant programs funds which are restricted for certain 
progratns or project. These are considered governmental funds because the activities are funded throueh 
public sources such as taxes and erants. 

Business-type activities — consist of the Land Acquisition Program and the Community Development 
Entity, LLC Funds which accounts for the activities of acquiring property and placing that property into 
viable development. 

At December 31. 2023. the Authmity's net position was over $6.4 million, of which $4.9 million is 
unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from legislation that 
limits the Authority's ability to use that net position for day-to-day operations. 
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The analysis of the primary government focuses on the net position and chanee in net position of the 
Authority's governmental activities and business-type activities is as follows: 

East Baton Rouge Redevekipment Authmitv 

13,BiA Build Baton Rouge 

Statenrnts ofNet Position 

December 31, 2u23 and 2022 

(in thothands) 

Cturent and other assets 

internal balances 

Governmental Acti\ me,: Business- Twe Activities; 

Total Primal, 

ernment 

2023 10-r) 7073 2022 2023 2022 

S 2,035 

315 

$ 1.467 

276 
$ 118 

(3151 

S 11 

(276) 
$ 2,153 $ 1.489 

inveitory - kind Acqui-Ations 

  

6.569 6,652 6.569 6.652 

Loans recenable. net 305 115 

  

305 315 

Capital assets 163 10 

  

163 16 

Tt gal assets $ 2.818 $ 3.074 6.372 S 6.39S S 9.190 $ 9.472 

Ctrrent liabilities $ 87 1, 417 $ 889 $ 970 S 971 S 1,387 

Due to other governnrnts 84 84 66 - 150 84 

Unearned reNenue 1,068 1.330 

 

- 1,068 1,330 

Long-tenn liabilities 148 

 

430 43." 578 432 

Total liabillies 1.382 1.831 1.385 1,402 2.767 32;1 

Net position 

      

Net iwestment m capital assets 14 10 

  

14 16 

Restrr ted 

 

- 1.500 1.500 1 500 1.500 

Unrestricted 1.422 1.1/7 3.487 3,496 4.909 4.723 

Total net II( ”-iition 1.43 1.243 4.987 4,996 6,423 6.239 

Total lithilities and net position 1, 2.818 $ 3.074 $ 6.372 $ 6.398 9.190 $ 9.472 

As indicated in the table above, the assets of the Authority's Governmental Activities consist priinarily 
of cash, loans receivable, and capital assets. While the loans and capital assets offer longer-term value to 
the Authority, they do not provide a source of readily available liquidity. The husiness-type activities' 
assets include land acquisition inventory which. when transferred or sold, can be recycled into other 
redevelopment activities, or used for operations. depending on the assets' initial funding source 
constraints. 

Net position of the Authwity is a result of the accurnulation of revenues in excess of expenses. The 
unrestricted portion of the net position represents amounts availahle to meet fmure obligations of the 
Authority. Restricted net position represents those net resources that are constrained fbr use according 
to the terms of the resource providers. 
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Net position of the Authority's governmental activities increased by 15%. or $193,000, during 2023. 
Unrestricted net position represents the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day 
operations without constraints established hy legislation or other legal requirements. 

The S1.4 million in unrestricted net position of governmental activities represents the cumulative results 
of operations since the Authority's inception. 

The changes in net position are discussed later in this analysis. The net position of the Authority's 
business activities decreased by $9.000, during 2023. 

The results of 2023 and 2022 operations fbr the primary government as reported in the Statement of 
Activities, are as follows: 

East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority 

D. A Budd Baton Rouge 

Statenrnts ot Activities 

For the years ended December 31. 2013 and 10?2 

(in thousands) 

Revenues. 

Governmental Activrne,, Bth,ine,,,,-T\pe Activities 

Total Primitry 

Government 

)0-,3 2021 2023 Nr-r,  

 

;WI 

      

Charges for services S 66 $ 23 N " 1 S 124 S 288 S 147 

Grants and contrilutions 988 1.462 S2 75 1.070 1 . -7,17 

C)ther 137 129 

  

137 129 

Total revenues 1.191 1.614 304 199 1.495 1.813 

Comniunity Development Function Expenses: 

      

Payroll and benefits 395 414 

 

66 395 480 

Asset management tee and stnicntring, fee 121 546 

  

121 546 

Legal and professional 327 677 76 31 403 708 

Travel and meetim,..3s 5 7 

 

- 5 7 

Favilitrs. Applies, and other 150 51 237 

 

387 51 

Totalexpenses 998 1.695 313 97 1.311 1.791 

Change in net position 193 (81) (9) 102 184 2 l 

Beginning net position 1.243 1.31 4 -1.996 4.894 6,139 6.218 

Eixling net posaion S 1.436 $ 1.243 S 4,987 ti4.996 $ 6.413 $ 6.139 

(continued) 

7 



Fmid Financial Statements 

A fund is a gyouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specitic activities or objectives. Traditional users of governmental financial statements 
will find the fund tinancial statement presentation more familiar. The focus is on major funds. rather 
than generic fund types. 

Reporting the Authoriq's Most Significant Funds 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Authority's most 
significant funds. Funds are accounting devices that the Authority uses to keep track of specific 
sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. Some funds may be required by state law or 
by bond covenants. 

The Authority currently has five funds among two broad categories of fund types: 

Governmental Fund Types 

• General Fund accounts for unrestricted revenue sources and as well as general operational 
expenditures. This fund is considered to he a governmental fund type, meaning the cost of its 
activities are funded through public sources such as taxes, grants, and general fee assessments. 

• The Mortgage Finance Authority (MFA ) and Oflice of Community Development (OCD) funds are 
considered to be special revenue funds. and account for the receipt and expenditures of grant 
programs funds which are restricted for certain programs or projects. 

Proprieta r3 Fund pes 

• Land Acquisition Program Fund - an enterprise fund which accounts for all of the activity of 
acquiring property and placing that property into viable developments. This fund is considered to be 
a proprietary fund type. meaning. the cost of its activities are funded through rental income and 
grant revenues. 

• Community Development Entity. LLC (CDE) - an enterprise funds which accounts for all the 
activity of the CDE, a hlended component unit of the Authority. This funds is considered to be a 
proprietary hind type. 

Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund tinancial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements are a required part of the basic tinancial statements and can be found in Exhihit 
A-9. 

Other information - In addition to the basic tinancial statements and accompanying notes. this report 
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning original and final budgetary 
comparisons to actual results tbr the year for the Authority's budgetary funds. 
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GOVERNMENTAL BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental fund balances represent the net available resources for spending and General Fund 
balances often serve as a govermnent's operating reserves. As the Authority cotnpleted 2023, its 
General Fund reported a fund balance of $1,117.000. 

The General Fund experienced a net increase in fund balance of $206,000 in 2023. Revenues of 
the governmental funds decreased by approximately $425,000 compared to the 2022 fiscal year. This 
is primarily due to revenues related to private grant monies earned from the Advancing Cities grant. 
The decreases in revenue were also coupled with corresponding decrease in expenses. as both 
revenue streams are expenditure driven. 

The General Fund's operating results compared to hudget are presented on page 37. Budgets were 
adjusted throughout the year to appropriately reflect revenues, and to adjust expenditures as 
needed. Although variances exist between actual and budgeted amounts. the hudgetary comparison 
schedules show the Authority operated within its available means. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The Authority's capital assets pritnarily consist of computer equipment. office furniture and fixtures. 
and right-of-use assets. At the end of 2023, the Authority's capital asset balance totaled $162,564 
compared to $16,331 as of December 31, 2022. 

Debt 

At year-end, the Authority's debt consisted of a note payable to a financial institution used to finance the 
acquisition of certain parcels of land and lease liabilities. Total debt outstanding at year end was 
$578,761. as shown helow. 

 

December 

31. 2022 Additions Deletions 

December 

31, 2023 

Due in one 

year 

 

Note Payable $ 450.880 

 

$ 20,566 $430.314 $ 18.984 

 

Lease Liability 

 

172,765 24.318 148.447 52.217 

  

`s, 4 50. 80 S172.7(►5 44.884 S578.761 $ 71,201 

       

C01161111Cd) 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS 

The Authority has been instrutnental in the furtherance of significant developinent projects and 
programs in recent years through the issuance of New Markets Tax Credits, gap-financine loans, 
affordable rental loans, and land-hanking activities. Additionally. the Authority has and is continuing 
to identify more stable and long-term sources of revenue to fund operating costs. Programs and 
projects will progress through a variety of secured ftinding sources, including intergovernmental 
grants and self-generating revenues. 

Contacting the Authority's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide citizens. clients. and grantors with a general overview 
of the Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority's accountability for the funds it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact 
Ms. Gretchen Siemers, 725 Main Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEA•IENTS 



Exhibit A 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2023 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from governrnents 
Internal balances 

 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-Type 
Total 

$ 1.983,667 
1 5,274 

314,526 

$ 70.528 

(314.526 

$ 2,054.195 
25.274 

) 
Inventory - land acquisitions 

 

6,569.333 6,569,333 
Loans receivable, net 304,568 

 

304,568 
Prepaids and other assets 27,437 46.325 73,762 
Capital assets. 

   

Depreciable, net 17,078 

 

17,078 

Right-of-use leased asset. net 145,486 

 

145.486 

Total assets $ 2.818,0:.;6 6,371,660 ti 9,189,6 96 

LIABILITIES 

   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 81,621 $ 23,021 $ 104.642 
Due to other governments 84,377 66,234 150.611 
Line of credit 

 

865,000 865.000 
Unearned grant revenue 1,067,733 

 

1,067.733 

Long-term liabilities: 

   

Due within one year 52,217 18,984 71,201 
Due m more than one year 96,230 411,330 507.560 

Total liahilities 1,381,178 1,384.569 2,766,747 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment in capital assets 14,117 

 

14,117 
Restricted for community development 

 

1,500,341 1,500,341 
Unrestricted 1.421,741 3.486,750 4,908.491 

Total net position 1.435,858 4,987.091 6,422,949 

Total liabilities and net position S 2,818,036 S 6.371,660 $ 9,189.696 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an inteiaa1 part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-1  

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOMIENT AUTHORITY' 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Row. Louisiana 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the year ended December 31. 2023 

Functions/Programs 
Ptimary government: 
Ciovemmental activities: 

Program Revenues 

Net Revenue (Expenses} and 
Changes in Net Position 

Charges for 
Expenses Services 

Operating 

Grants and 
Contributions 

Gosernmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

     

Coininunity developinent $ 997,707 $ 66,000 $ 988.212 $ 56.505 $ $ 56.505 

Busmess-type activities. 

     

Real estate actpusition and 
land banking 7;12 70' 221,765 S1.739 

 

19.293) (9.293) 

Total pmuary government $ 1.7;10 501 $ 287,765 $ 1 069.051 56.505 19,293) 47.212 

 

General revenues. 

     

lnteiest income 

 

136,360 

 

136,36(► 

 

Change tn net posttion 

 

192,865 9.293) 183,572 

 

Net ixNitiou - beginning of year 

 

1.242.993 4,996.3S4 45,'39.377 

 

Net position - end of yew 

 

$ l.435.S58 S 4.087,1191 $ 6.422.949 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-2 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOP\ [ENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge. Louisiana 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

December 31, 2023 

 

Nlajur Fund,. Nonmajor Fund Total 

Governmentul 
Fundk 

General 
Fund 

Oup 

Fund 

MLA 

Fund 

ASSETS 

    

Cash anti cash equivalents $ $ 482.518 S 6.312 $ I.9f“.667 

Due from governments and other receivables 25,274 

  

25,274 
Due from other funds 797.044 

 

78.065 875,109 

Piepaids and other 27,437 

  

27,437 

Total assets $ 2.344,592 $ 482.518 $ 84.377 $ 2.911,487 

LIABILITIES 

    

Accounts payable and accnied liabihries g 81,621 $ 

 

$ 81,621 

Due to other governments 

  

84.377 84,377 

Due to other funds 75,065 482.518 

 

560.533 

Unearned grant revenue 1 067,733 

  

067,733 

Total liabilities 1.227.4N 482.518 S4.377 1.7()4.314 

FUND BALANCE 

    

Nouspendable 27,437 

  

27,437 

Unassigned 1,089,736 

  

1.089.736 

Total fiind balance 1.117,173 

  

1.117.173 

Total liahilities and fund balance $ 2.344,592 $ 482.518 $ si.377 $ .9l1.4S7 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-3 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton RouQe. Louisiana 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL RINDS 

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31. 2023 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 

Position is different hecause. 

Total fund halance - governmental fund (Exhibit A-2) 1.11 7.173 

Loans receivables. net of allowance. are not reported on the ftmd basis. 304.568 

Capital assets used in governmental activities that are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds, 
net of accumulated depreciation. 

LonQ-term liabilities (e.g. leases). are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are not reported in the eovernmental funds, 

excluding internal service fimd amounts. 
Lease liability 

162,564 

 

(148.447)    

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A) $ 1.435.858 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an inteQral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-4 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPNIENT AUTHORITY 

D/B/A BUILD BATON ROL:GE 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the year ended December 31. 2023 

 

Nlajor Funds Nouunajoa Hind Total 
GO\ erinne-ntal 

Funds 
Geurral 

Fund 
D 

Fund 

 

N1FA 
Fund 

REVENt 'ES 

     

Intergovernmental grants $ 825.000 S - 5 i 825.4)4)0 
Private uants 163.212 - 

  

163.212 
Charges far services 66,000 

   

66,000 
Loan repayments - prtncipal & Interest 

   

28.169 28,169 

Total revenues 1.051.212 

  

28.169 1.1182.381 

EXPENDITURES 

     

Current flan:non: 

     

Commtuuty development 

     

Salaries and benefits 394,95' 

   

394,95' 
Legal and professional 327,296 

   

327,296 
Supplies and other operating 104,500 

   

104,500 
Reut and utilities 6,52K 

   

6,52K 
Travel and meetings 5,388 

   

5,388 

CDE management 5,003 

   

5,003 
Debt servIce 

     

Prancapal 24,318 

   

24,318 

Interest 3.710 

   

3.710 

Capital oittlay 177,744 

   

177,744 

Tutal expenditures 1,019.430 

   

1,019.430 

Excess of revenues ovei experahtures 4,773 

  

26,16° ;2,942 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
ansfeis in 28,169 

   

28,169 
Proceeds fiom ight-ot-use asset 172,765 

   

172,765 
Transfer; out 

   

(28,169) (28,169) 

Total other financing sowers (uses). net 200,934 

  

(28,169) I 72.765 

Net change m kid balance 205,7417 

   

205,7417 

FUND BALANCE 

     

Beginning of year 911.406 

   

911.466 

End of year S I 11 7.1 73 S 

 

s I 11 7.1 73 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-5 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge. Louisiana 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO 

THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Fin the year ended December 31. 2023 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement 
of Activities is different because: 

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds (Exhibit A-4) 

Govertunental funds report loan principal repayments as revenues. However. in the statement 
of activities. the repayments are ieported as a iedoction in the outstanding receivable. 

$ 205.707 

(11.743) 

The povernmental fund reporrs capital outlay as expenditures. Howevei, in the statement 
of activities. the cost of those assets are allocated ovei their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation and amortization expense. 

depreciation expense. 
Capital outlay 177.744 
Depreciation and amortization expense (31.512) 146.232 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g leases) provides cunent financial resources to 

governmental funds. In the statement of net position, however, issuing debt increase long-term 
liabilities and does not effect the statement of activities. Similarly, payment of principal is an 
expenditure in the govermnent funds but reduces the lrabdit, in the statement of activities 

Pioceeds from issuance of lease liabilities (172,765i 
Principal payments on lease liabilities 24.318 (148 447) 

Cinvermnental funds do nor report a piovision tnr Ioan losses or tecovery of amounts 
previously allowed for leceivables. 

Governmental funds do not report interest income foi loan balances 
Difference between inteiest income ieported on statement of activities and interest payments 

received and reported as revenue within the governmental funds 
136.360 
(16.426) 119 934 

Change in uet position of governmental activities (Exlubit A-I)   $ 191  SO 5     

Notes of Exhibit A-9 are an mtegial part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-6 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

December 31, 2023 

 

Land 
Acquisition 
Program 

East Baton 
Rouge 

Community 
Development 
Entity, LLC otal 

ASSETS 
Current assets. 

    

Cash and cash equivalents S 70.187 S 341 70.528 

Inventory - land acquisitions 6.569.333 

  

6,569,333 

Due from other funds 284 

  

284 

Prepaids and other assets 46.325 

  

46,3'5 

Total assets 5 6.6;.;(6.119 S 341 6,686,470 

LIABILITIES 

    

Current liabilities: 

    

Accounts paN able and accrued liabilities .S 23,021 $ 

 

S "3,01 1 

Due to other funds 314.810 

 

- 314.810 

Due tu other governments 66.234 

  

66,234 

Line of credit 865,i M0 

 

- 865,000 

Long-term liabilities - due within one year 18,984 

 

- 18.98-1 

Total current liabilities 1,288,049 

  

1.288,049 

Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year 411.330 

  

411,330 

Total liabilities 1.699.379 

  

1.6v9,379 

NET POSITION 

    

Restricted for community development 1,500,000 

 

341 1.500.34 l 

Unrestricted 3,486,750 

  

3.486,750 

Total net position 4,986.750 

 

341 4.987,091 

Total liabilities and net position S 6.6z.(6.119 S 341 6,6s6.470 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this staternent. 
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Exhibit .A-7 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge. Louisiana 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the year ended December 31. 2023 

 

Land 

Acquisition 
Program 

East Baton 
Rouge 

Community. 

Development 
Entity, LLC Total 

OPERATING REVENUES 

    

Rental incorne $ 124,010 $ 

 

S 124,010 

Proceeds from sale of inventory 97.755 

 

- 97,755 

Total operatine revenue 221,765 

  

221,765 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

    

Cost of pods sold 163.989 

  

163.989 
Professional and legal services 76,757 

  

76,257 
Supplies and other operating 37,951 

  

37,951 

Total operatine expenses 

   

778,197 

Operating loss (56.432) 

  

(56,432) 

NONOPERATING 

    

Grant revenue 81.739 

  

81,739 
Interest expense (34.600) 

  

(34,600) 

Total nonperating 47.139 

  

47,139 

Change in net position 0.293) 

  

(9,293) 

NET POSITION 

    

Beginning of year 4.996.043 

 

341 4,996,384 

End of year $ 4.986.750 S 341 x 4.987,091 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-8 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

D/B/A BUILD BATON ROIIGE 

Baton Rouge. Loitisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the year ended Decenibei 31. 21123 

 

Land 

Acquisition 

Program 

East Baton 
Ruuge 

Community 
Development 

Entity, LLC Total 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers $ 221.765 $ - $ 221.765 

Payments for land acquisition (14.250) - (14.2501 

Operaring payments (207,846) 

 

(207,846) 

Net cash used by operating activities (331) 

 

(33i) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND 

   

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

   

Opeiating grants 81.739 

 

81.739 

interest expense (34.600) 

 

(34.600) 

Payments to Plank Road Conummay Land Bank Trim (75.000) 

 

(75.000) 

Payments on note payable (20.566) 

 

(20.566) 

Inclease in due to state 66.234 

 

66.234 

hicrease in due to othei funds 38.200 

 

38.200 

Net cash provided by noncapital and related financing activities 56,007 

 

56.1107 

Net increase in cash 55.676 

 

55.676 

CASH 

   

Beginning of period 14.511 341 14.85' 

End ot period 70.187 $ 341 $ 70,5'8 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO 

   

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

   

Operating loss (56.432) $ 

 

(56.432) 

Adjuctments to reconcile operating loss to net cach 

provided by operaring activities 

   

Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

   

Decrease in inventory 83.505 

 

83.505 

Decrease in piepaid expenses (39.350) 

 

(39.350) 

Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11.946 

 

11.946 

Net cash used by opeiating activities b (331) $ 

 

(331) 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integal part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-9 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANC'I.4L STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AC:C:OUNTING POLICIES 

Statement Presentation 

The East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority ( the Authority or RDA) was created through 
a series of Acts of the 2007 and 2009 Louisiana Legislative sessions. It is governed by a 
five-member Board of Commissioners appointed by the Mayor-President of East Baton 
Rouge Parish, Baton Rouge Area Foundation. and Baton Rouge Area Chamber. The 
Authority's goals are to transform the quality of life for all citizens: tbster redevelopment in 
disinvested areas; facilitate partnerships: create a vibrant. competitive community: and 
preserve and enhance a sense of place. 

The Authority accomplishes these goals through funding obtained through various avenues 
including cooperative endeavors, grants, public-private partnerships. joint ventures, and equity 
participation structures with nonprofit organizations and private enterprises. Programs of 
the Authority include Small Business Facade, Gap Financing, Affordable Rental Housine, 
Land Banking, Community Health, Economic Revitalization, and the Tax Sale Certificate 
Purchase Program. These prograrns are also funded from the issuance of new market tax 
credits issued through the East Baton Rouge Community Development Entity. LLC (CDE). 

The accounting and reporting practices of the East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority 
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
applicable to governmental entities. 

Reporting Entity 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended by 
Statement No. 61. establishes criteria for determinine the governmental reporting entity and 
component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Although the Authority 
is a legally separate entity possessing the right to levy taxes. approve its own budget and issue 
debt, under provisions of this Statement, the Authority is considered a component unit of the 
City-Parish government of East Baton Rouge (City-Parish). theprinuny government, since a 
level of control is maintained by the City-Parish through appointment of a majoritv of the 
Authority's Board and through fiscal interdependency. As a component unit, the Authority's 
financial statements are discretely presented in the City-Parish's financial statements. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued} 

NOTE 1 - SUMN1ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Reporting Entity (Continued) 

The Authority, as in previous years, received a significant amount of funding from the East 
Baton Rouge Mortgage Finance Authority (EBRMFA), which is considered to be a related 
mgantzatton to the City-Parish as defined by GASB Statement No. 14, as amended through 
Statement No. 61, due to the City-Parish appointing a majority of its Board of Directors. 
No presentation is required of the EBRMFA within these tinancial statements. 

The Authority itself also has a component unit. the East Baton Rouge Community 
Development Entity, LUC (the CDE). The Authority owns a forty-nine percent membership 
interest in the CDE and three of the five members of the CDE's board of directors are also 
members of the Authority's hoard of directors. Additionally, it has been determined that a 
financial benefit/lender relationship exits. Accordingly, the CDE's financial statements are 
presented in the tinancial statements of the Authority as a blended component unu. 

The CDE did not have any activity during the 2023 fiscal Year. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed hy the GASB. 
These principles are found in the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Standards that are promulgated by the GASB, which is the accepted standard 
setting hody for establishing governmental accounting principles and reporting standards. The 
Authority's basic financial statements consist of the government-wide statements of all of the 
primary government and the fi.ind financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The accompanying government-wide statements (the Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Activities) are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting. revenues are recopized when they 
are earned and expenses are recognized when the related liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Authority gives (or 
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange. include erants, 
entitlements, and donations. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized 
in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

(continued) 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMNIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Financial Statement% 

Governmental Fund Toes: 

The governmental fund financial statements (the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance) are presented using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
they become measurable and availahle to fund current operations. The Authority considers 
all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected 
within sixty days after year-end. Expenditures are recoenized when the related fund liability 
is incurred. except for principal and interest on long-terin debt which is recognized when due. 
The governmental fund financial statements provide information about the Authority's 
governmental funds. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on the major governmental 
funds. As of December 31, 2023, the Authority has two major governmental funds and one 
non-major fund as follows: 

• General Fund - accounts for the general operations of the Authority that are funded 
through unrestricted funding sources. The General Fund is always a major fund. 

• Office of Community Development (OCD) CDBG HOME Fund - accounts for the 
charges for services to the City of Baton Rouge and Parish of East Baton Rouge for the 
administration of the Community Planning and Development grant programs from the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urhan Development. The OCD fund is reported as a 
major special revenue fund. 

• MFA Fund - accounts for the grant funding ohtained from the East Baton Rouge Parish 
Mortgage Finance Authority. The MFA fund is reported as a non-major special revenue 
fund. 

Proprietary 1. and Toes: 

Entoprise Funds - Enterprise funds are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. They are used to account for 
operations.  (a) that are financed and operated similarly to private business enterprises, 
where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses. including depreciation) 
of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges: or (h) where the governing body has decided 
periodic detemination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, andior net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control. accountability, or 
other purposes. Enterprise funds are presented in the business-type activities column in 
government-wide financial statements and the major funds section of the basic financial 
statements. 



Exhibit A-9 
(Connnued ) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Proprietary Fund Toes (Continued): 

The enterprise fund reported as two major funds in the fund financial statements is as 
follows: 

• The Land Acquisition Program Fund accounts for the operation of the Land 
Acquisition Program in which property is obtained for viable developments. 

• The East Baton Rouge Community Development Entity Fund, LLC (the CDE), a 
blended component unit, accounts for the operations of the CDE. 

The CDE was formed on February 23. 2009, under the laws of the State of Louisiana. 
The CDE is a qualified Community Development Entity (CDE) that holds new inarket tax 
credits (NMTC) allocation authority to he used for investment in Qualified Active Low 
Income Conununity Businesses (QALICB ) pursuant to Section 45D of the Internal Revenue 
Code (IRC). The CDE was granted a seventh-round allocation of $60,000,000 of NMTC 
authority from the U.S. Treasury's Community Development Financial Institutions Fund 
(CDFI Fund) under an Allocation Aereement dated October 30, 2009. In eeneral. under 
Section 45D of the IRC, a qualified investor in a CDE can receive the NMTC to be used 
to reduce Federal taxes otherwise due in each year of a seven-year period. 

Under the CDE's Allocation Agreement with CDFI Fund, Redevelopment Authority Fund I, 
LLC (Fund I). Redevelopment Authority Fund II. LLC (Fund II). Redevelopment Authoritv 
Fund III. LLC (Fund III), Redevelopment Authority Fund IV, LLC (Fund IV), and 
Redevelopment Authority Fund V, LLC (Fund V) have become approved "Subsidiary 
Allocatees" of the CDE, the managing member of the Subsidiary Allocatees. An allocation 
ageement places restriction on the CDE's operations, including. but not limited to. a specific 
geographical area of the low-income communities the CDE must serve. The CDE has been 
approved to serve low-income communities in East Baton Rouge Parish, Louisiana. As of 
December 31. 2016, the CDE has allocated its seventh round NMTC authority of $60,000,000 
to Fund I, Fund II, Fund III, Fund IV, and Fund V. 

In accordance with the CDE's operating agreement. profits. losses and cash flows (suhject to 
special allocations) are allocated 49% to East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority and 
51% to the City-Parish. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Authority receives revenue through Cooperative Endeavor Ageements for services 
provided. The Authority has determined that the funds received from these agreements are 
attributable to one performance obligation (program administration services). and the 
Authoritv recognizes revenue when the performance ohligation is satisfied (as the services are 
performed). 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Revenue Recognition (('ontinued ) 

Grants and similar items are recogthzed as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. Revenue from grants are recognized in the year in 
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied and the availability criteria met which 
means sixty-days after year end for governmental fund types. 

Investment in Limited Liability Companies 

The Authority accounts for its investment in the limited liability companies using the equity 
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is recorded at cost, and 
increased or decreased hy the Authority's share of the limited liability companies' income or 
losses, and increased or decreased by the amount of any contributions made or distributions 
received. The Authority holds a 0.01% membership interest in each of the Funds as of 
December 31. 2023. The investments have no halances as of December 31, 2023. 

The Authority regularly evaluates the carrving value of its investment in the limited liability 
companies. If the carrying value exceeds the estimated value derived by management. the 
Authority reduces its investment as an impairment loss. Fair value is measured as the 
remaining benefits to the Authority. As of December 31, 2023, an impairment loss has not 
been recognized. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt instniments with an 
original maturity of three months or less. 

Loans Receivable 

Loans receivable represent loans advanced for programmatic and development purposes 
whose repayment terms are evidenced through promissory notes. The notes are carried at their 
outstanding principal balance less an allowance for amounts estimated to be uncollectible 
or tbrgiven. Management determines the estimated loan losses based upon the payment status 
of the loan, the financial condition of the project, and other economic factors. 

Capital Assets 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at their acquisition value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not 
capital ized. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Capital Assets ((:ontinued) 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

 Asset Cla,,c Estimated Usefid Life 
3-10 
3-5 

 

Furniture and equipment 
Computer software 

Right-of-Use Assets  

Right of use assets are a result of leases in which the Authority has entered into a contract with 
a lessor that conveys control of the right to use the lessor's nonfinancial asset as specified by 
the contract for a period of time in an exchange-hke transaction. Such assets are reported as 
operating or finance lease assets and liabilities on the statement of net position, net of 
amortization. Rieht of use assets are amortized at the lesser of the useful life or lease term. 

Government-m ide and Proprietary Fund Net Position 

Government-wide and proprietary fund net position is divided into three components. 

• Net investment in capital assets — is the historical cost of capital assets less 
accumulated depreciation and related deht to acquire those assets. 

• Restricted net position — is the net position that is restricted by the Authority's 
creditors (for example, through debt covenants), grantors (hoth federal and state), and 
other contributors. 

• Unrestricted — all other net position is reported in this category. 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, restricted resources available for 
use will he depleted prior to use of unrestricted resources. 

(continued) 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Governmental Fund Balances 

In the governmental fund financial statements. fund balances are classitied as follows: 

• Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent because they are either in a 
nonspendable form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. Management has classified prepaid expenditures as being nonspendable as this 
item is not expected to be converted to cash. 

• Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes externally imposed 
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contrihutors. or laws and 
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
of enabling legislations. The Authority did not have any restricted fund balances as 
of December 31, 2023. 

• Committed — amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined hy 
formal action of the Authoritys board of directors. which is the Authority's highest 
level of decision-making authority. The Authority did not have any committed fund 
balance as of December 31. 2023. 

• Assigned — amounts that are desipated hy the Authority for a particular purpose but 
are not spendable until a budget ordinance is passed or there is a majority vote 
approval (for capital projects or debt services) by the Authority's President and Chief 
Executive Officer. The Authority did not have any assiped fund balance at December 
31. 2023. 

• Unassigned - all amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 

Use of Restricted Resources 

When an expenditure is incurred that can he paid using either restricted or unrestricted 
resources (fund balance), the Authority's policy is to apply the expenditure in the following 
priority: 

1. Restricted fund halance, 
2. Committed fund balance, 
3. Assigned fund balance. and 
4. Unassigned fund balance. 

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Proprietary hinds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producine 
and delivering goods in connection with each funds principal on-going operations. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are considered non-operating. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting 

(,'eneral Budget Practices 

The Authority follows these procedures in establishing the hudgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements. 

• State statute requires budgets to be adopted in public session tbr the General 
Fund and all special revenue funds. 

• Prior to the beginning of its fiscal year. the Chief Executive Officer submits to the 
Board a proposed annual budget for the General Fund and special revenue flinds. 
Public hearings are conducted prior to the Authoritys approval to obtain comments. 
The operating budgets include proposed expenditures and the means of financing 
them. 

• Appropriations (unexpended budget balances) lapse at December 31st of each year. 
• Formal hudget integration (within the accounting records) is employed as a 

management control device. Budget amounts included in the accompanyine financial 
statements consist of those presented in the original budget adopted by the Board and 
as amended by the Board. 

Budgeting Basis 

All governmental funds' budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, a 
basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are originally adopted and subsequently amended by 
the Board. Legally, the Board must adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues 
and other financing sources including beginning fund halance must equal or exceed total 
budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State statutes require the Board to amend its 
budget when revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less than 
budgeted revenues by five percent or more andior expenditures within a fund are expected 
to exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statetnents in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements. They may also affect the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses of proprietary funds and the government-wide financial statements during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used primarily 
when accounting fbr capital assets and depreciation, right-of-use assets and amortization. 
prepaid expenses, the allowance for loan receivahles. and grant and contract revenue and 
receivables. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued} 

NOTE 1 - SUMNIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Inventory — Land Acquisitions 

Land inventory is recorded at cost and represents cost incurred in the acquisition. 
development, and maintenance of blighted or adjudicated properties. Donated property is 
recorded at acquisition value. Gain or loss resulting from the sale or transfer of the related 
properties is reflected in the change in net position in the period of sale or transfer. 

Prepaid and Other Assets 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both eovernment-wide and fund financial statements. 

Right-of-Use Assets - Leases 

Effective January 1. 2022, the Authority implemented policies established under GASB 
Statement No. 87. Leu.se.s. The objective of this statement is to better meet the infbrmation 
needs of the financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for 
leases by governments. The Statement requires all leases (contracts that conveys control of the 
right to use another entity's nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time 
in an exchange-like transaction) to be reported under a single accounting model for both lessors 
and lessees. Certain leases that were previously classitied as operating leases are to be 
recognize as lease assets and liabilities. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize 
a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize 
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, therehy enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. As of December 31, 2023, 
the Authority entered into a lease agreement that meets the criteria under GASB Statement No. 
87. See Note 4. 

Current Accounting Standards Implemented 

Subscription-Based InjOrmation Technology Arrangements 

Subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) are a contract that 
conveys control of the right to use another parry's information technology software. alone or 
in combination with tangible capital assets, as specified in the contract for a period of time in 
an exchange or exchange-hke transaction. Such assets are reported on the government-wide 
financial statement net of amortization. SBITAs are amortized during the extent of the 
ageement. The Authority has not entered into any material agreements gaining control of the 
right to use another parry's information technology as described above at December 31, 2023. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMNIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (('ONTINUED) 

Current Accounting Standards Implemented (Continued) 

Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availabilio. Payment Arrangements 

Effective January 1, 2023. the Authority implemented policies under GASB Statement No. 94, 
Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships (PPPs) und Availability Payment 
Arrangements (APAs), which is hased on the standards established in GASB Statement No. 
87. Leases. PPP is an arrangement in which a government contracts with an operator to provide 
public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset. such as 
infrastructure or other capital asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction. APA is an arraneement in which a eovernment compensates an operator for 
services that may include designing, constructing. financing. maintaining, or operating an 
underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. 
The Authority has not entered into any public-private or public-public parinership 
arrangements or availability payment arrangements as defined by GASB Statement No. 94. 
Therefore. the implementation of this statement has not had an impact on our financial 
statements at December 31, 2023. 

Subsequent Events 

In preparine these financial statements, the Authority has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through June 24, 2024, which was the date the financial 
statements were availahle to he issued. 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

As a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana, the Authority may deposit funds in 
state chartered financial institutions or nationally chartered institutions with principal offices 
maintained within Louisiana. Under Louisiana law. all deposits must be secured against 
custodial credit risk through either FDIC insurance or the pledge of investment securities 
owned by the financial institution. Custodial credit risk is the risk that deposits in a financial 
institution may be unable to be recovered in the event of a bank thilure. The bank balance of 
cash and cash equivalents held at financial institutions was S2,061.384 with a carrying balance 
of S2,054.195 at December 31. 2023, The Authority had no exposure to custodial credit risk at 
December 31, 2023. 

(continued) 
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(Continued) 

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets and depreciation as of December 31, 2023, is as follows: 

 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

    

Furniture and equipment $ 124,819 $ 4,979 $ 226 $ 129,573 
Computer software 6,432 

  

6,432 

Total capital assets being depreciated 131,251 4,979 226 136,005 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

    

Furniture and equipment 108,548 4,233 226 112,555 
Computer software 6,372 

  

6,372 

Total accumulated depreciation 114,920 4,233 226 118,927 

Total governmental capital assets, net $ 16,331 $ 746 $ $ 17,078 

For the year ended December 31, 2023, depreciation expense was $4,233 and is reported in 
the Statement of Activities under the Governmental Activities within the community 
development function. 

NOTE 4 - RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET - LEASES 

The Authority has a right-of-use leased asset for an office space through an operating lease. 
The lease is paid in monthly installments of $4,671 for the first year, $4,904 for second year, 
and $5,051 for the remaining term. The carrying liability is recorded at the present value of the 
future lease payments using a weighted-average discount rate equal to the U.S. Treasury Rate 
(4.56%) as of the respective date in which the initial valuation of the liabilities were recorded. 
The lease is set to mature in August 2026. The lease contains a renewal option for two 
additional terms of one year each. 

The Authority has an operating lease liability of $172,765 as of December 31, 2023, with 
$52,217 maturing within the next year. The Authority incurred $27,279 of amortization 
expense related to right-of-use leased asset in the year ended December 31, 2023. 

Amounts Due 

December 31, December 31, Within One 

2022 Increases Decreases 2023 Year 

Right-of-Use Lease Asset - $ 172,765 $ - $ 172,765 

 

Less: Accumulated Amortization (27,279) (27,279) 

 

Total Lease Asset, net $ 145,486 $ - $ 145,486 

 

Lease Liability $ 172,765 $ (24,318) $ 148,447 $ 52,217 
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(Continued) 

NOTE 4 - RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET - LEASES (CONTINUED) 

Future maturities of the lease liability as of December 31, 2023 is as follows: 

Year ending 

December 31, Principal Interest Total payments  

2024 $ 52,217 $ 5,234 $ 57,452 
2025 56,503 3,227 59,730 
2026 39,727 682 40,409 

Total $ 148,447 $ 9,143 $ 157,591 

NOTE 5 - LINE OF CREDIT 

0n May 30, 2019, the Authority entered into a memorandum of understanding with the Capital 
Area Finance Authority (CAFA) for a line of credit not to exceed $300,000 for property 
acquisition, new construction and/or rehabilitation. Funds from the line of credit may be drawn 
as needed by the Authority in any amount up to the not to exceed amount. A first mortgage 
lien in favor of CAFA will be placed on each property acquired, constructed, or rehabilitated 
using a draw from the line of credit during the term of the financing. The draws will represent 
interest only loans with interest fixed at 4% per year. 0n November 26, 2019, the agreement 
was amended to increase the line of credit to $865,000. 0n June 18, 2020, the agreement was 
amended a second time to allow usage of funds for professional services. As of December 31, 
2023, the balance owed on the line of credit was $865,000 and is set to mature on September 
30, 2024. 

NOTE 6 - NOTE PAYABLE 

Business-type activities 

0n September 23, 2021, the Authority entered into an interest free note payable with a financial 
institution in the principal amount of $474,611. The note payable is due in monthly principal 
payments of $1,582, with a final balloon payment of $381,271 due September 2026. The 
balance as of December 31, 2023, was $430,314. The Authority entered into the note payable 
agreement to finance the acquisition of certain parcels of land (property), where the Authority 
will grant one or more mortgages encumbering the property. 

(continued) 
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(Continued) 

NOTE 6 - NOTE PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

Business-type activities (Continued) 

The note is collateralized by the underlying property, including any rents and proceeds from 
any insurance. Future maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2023, are as follows: 

Year ended 

December 31. Amount  

2024 $ 18,984 

2025 18.984 

2026 192,146 

$ 430:114 

The following is a summary of long-term debt of the Authority's business-type activities: 

December December Due m one 
31, 2022 Additions Deletions 31, 2023 year 

Note Payable S 450,880 $ - S 20,566 $ 430,314 S 18.984 

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY 

Advancing Cities Contracts 

The Authority was awarded with a $5.000,000 contract from JPMorgan Chase Foundation for 
the Plank Road Masterplan Impletnentation to be paid in installtnents through March 2026. 
Accordingly, the Authority entered into contracts with vendors as part of this initiative. The 
remaining commitments on these contracts as of December 31, 2023, is $567.733 and is 
reported under unearned grant revenue in the statement of net position. 

Cooperative Endeavor Agreement 

The Authority entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement with the State of Louisiana for 
the purpose of predevelopment activities for a community-centered real estate development 
project for the Scotlandville Community Development Corporation. The Authority received 
$500,000 under this agreement during the 2022 tiscal year. As of Decemher 31. 2023, no 
expenditures have been incurred under this agreement and the funds are reported under 
unearned grant revenue in the statement of net position. 

NOTE 8 - COMPENSATION OF GOVERNING BOARD 

The five members of the Authority's Board of Commissioners serve without compensation. 



Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 9 - GAP FINANCING AND RENTAL REHABILITATION LOANS RECEIVABLE 

In the furtherance of its mission, the Authority issues below-market interest rate loans to 
multi-lhmily housing developers and other organizations. These loans have repayment 
tertns from 3 to 30 years and the principal of certain loans may be forgiven upon satisfactory 
compliance with the lending and regulatory agreements. At December 31, 2023. the 
Authority had four loans outstanding to borrowers under active lending ageements. 

These loans are carried as an asset in the government activities financial statements at the 
outstanding principal amount less an allowance for amounts estimated to be uncollectable or 
forgiven as determined by management. Loans outstanding at December 31, 2023 consist of: 

 

Amount 

Principal balances outstanding $ 2,677,067 
Interest on principal balances 319,477 

Allowance for uncollectable or forgiven amounts (2.691.976) 

Total loans outstanding, net $ 304.568 

NOTE 19 - LAND BANKING INVENTORY 

In fUrtherance of its mission, the Authority acquires properties for redevelopment. These 
properties inay be acquired through transfer of adjudicated properties from the East Baton 
Rouge Parish government, by purchase, or through donation. 

While held in inventory, the Authority clears the title of the properties, maintains and 
develops them, and then transfers the properties to other organizations for further 
development, rehabilitation, or other uses. Costs to acquire and develop are carried as 
inventory in the Land Banking Fund's Statement of Net Position and are expensed upon 
transfer of the property. Routine maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Activity of land 
banking inventory during 2023 was as lbllows: 

 

Amount 

Beginnina balance S 6.652.838 

Sale of land inventory (97,755) 
Cost incurred to acquire new and maintain 

existing properties 14.250 

Ending balance S 6.569.333 

During the year, the Authority sold a portion of inventory valued at $97,755. 
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(Connimed) 

NOTE 11 - TAX SALE CERTIFICATE PURCHASE PROGRAM 

The Authority has a program wherehy tax lien certificates are purchased at tax sale for those 
properties within East Baton Rouge Parish whose taxes are delinquent and unpaid. The tax 
certiticates convey the right to receive redemption payments of the taxes plus interest and 
penalties for three years subsequent to acquisition by the Authority. Property rights convey 
to the purchaser of the tax certificates if the taxes are not paid within the three years. 

R.S. 33:4720.1051 gives the Authority preference to purchase the tax certificate at the 
minimum bid amount except I'm a higher bid submitted by a conventional mortgage holder. 
At December 31. 2023. the Authority did not own any tax lien certiticates. 

NOTE 12 - AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS 

On July 15, 2021, the Authority created the Cortana Corridor Economic Development 
District (the District) pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statue 33:472(1.151. The District was 
created as a special taxing district and is considered a component unit of the City-Parish as 
the City-Parish appoints three of the five board members of the District, while the council 
member presiding over District 6 of the City-Parish (the City-Parish district covers the 
eeoeraphical reeion of the District) appoints the other two members. Additionally, the annual 
operating budget of the District is required to be approved by the City-Parish in conjunction 
with the City-Parish's legally adopted budget. As a result. the City-Parish can impose its will 
on the District. In May 2022, the Authority entered into an agreernent with the District to 
perform administrative services on their behalf This agreeinent compensates the Authority 
$2,000 monthly per month plus third-party costs, fees, and expenses. In addition to 
perkirming administrative services, the Authority also manages the Master Plan for the 
Cortana Corridor on behalf of the District. According to the terms of the agreement. the 
Authority ts cornpensated $18,000, from the District, on a quarterly basis, beginning June 
2023. At Decernber 31, 2023, the Authority is owed $25.274 from the District related to 
administrative and management fees. 

On April 5, 2023, Plank Road CLBT, Inc. ("Plank Road Cotnmunity Land Bank and Trust", 
or "CLBT- ) was formed, which is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit that will work with the Authority to 
implement its Plank Road Corridor Masterplan and as part of the Advancing Cities Grant 
described in Note 7. At least one member of CLBT's Board shall, at all times. he a member 
frorn the Authority's Board of Cornrnissioners. The CLBT's mission is to bring people and 
resources together to promote equitable invesnnent, innovative development. and thriving 
communities across all of Baton Rouge. 
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NOTE 13 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Transfers were made frorn the MFA Fund to the General Fund to provide for operating costs 
approved bv the budeet. Interfund transfers at year end were as follows: 

Transfer In Transfer )ut 

Pri mai?. Government: 

General Imul: 

MFA Fund S 28,169 
  

MFA Fund: 

General Fund   28.169     

Total S 28,169 $ 28.169  

NOTE 14 - INTERFUND BALANCE 

Interfund receivable and payable balances represent short-term horrowine between funds. 
The interfund balances of the primary government at December 31. 2023 were as follows• 

Individual Fund Receivahle Payable 

Governmental-type activities: 

General Fund: 

  

MFA Fund 

 

S 78.065 
Land Bank Fund 314.810 

 

OCD Fund 482.234 

 

Total General Fund 797.0-1-1 78,065 

OCD Fund: 

  

General Fund 

 

482.234 
Land Bank Fund 

 

284 
Total OCD Fund 

 

482,518 

NIFA Fund: 

  

General Fund 78,065 

 

Total governmental activities 875.109 560,583 

Business-type activities: 

  

Land Bank Fund 

  

General Fund 

 

314.810 
OCD Fund 284 

 

Total Land Bank Fund 284 314,81() 

Total pritna government $ 875,393 $ 875.393 
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NOTE 15 - DEVELOPN1ENT AGREEMENT 

On December 1, 2016, the Authority entered into an agreement to lease property located 
at 15()9 Government Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana. The Authority leased the property to 
a cotnpany to facilitate the developtnent and construction of a tnixed- use development 
consisting of residential, commercial, and retail purposes. 

The Authority's lease is with the Electric Depot which ends January 1, 2()29. Monthly 
payments are $10.334 and rental income of approximately $124.010 is recorded in the Land 
Banking Fund for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

Laud Banking Imentor, 

In 2()12, the Authority acquired certain parcels of land which were partially funded through 
grants received from the U.S. Deparnnent of Housing and Urban Development's Community 
Development Block Grant Proeratn allocated through the State of Louisiana fbr disaster 
recovery. whereas the City-Parish was the recipient of these funds from the State of Louisiana 
and passed the funds to the Authority. Terins of the gant required the parcels of land to be 
redeveloped to increase the housing stock and provide economic revitalization. The original 
agreement between the Authority and City-Parish was amended to extent the timeline of the 
agreement. 

On March 24. 2024, the Authority received correspondence from the City-Parish regarding 
approval from the State of Louisiana's Office of Community Development for the Authority 
to sell the remaining parcels ofland acquired from the grant funds to East Baton Rouge Parish 
Housing Authmity. Proceeds from the sale of land will be remitted hack to the State of 
Louisiana's Oftice of Community Developtnent and any sliortfall amounts will be paid by the 
Authority. The Authority estimates approximately $66,234 to be repaid as a result of this 
transaction and this amount has been accrued as a liability in the financial statements in the 
Land Acquisition Fund at December 31, 2023. Upon completion of the sale and remittance of 
shortfall amounts. the Authority believes their obligation to meet original grant requirements 
will be satisfied. The Authority anticipates the sale being executed in July 2024. 
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Exhibit B 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPNIENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Banal Rouge, Loutsiana 

GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended December 31 '073 

 

Original 

Budget 

Final 

Budget Actual 

Variance - 
positive 

(negative) 

REVENUES 

    

Intergovernmental grants $ 825.000 $ 825.000 $ 825.000 $ 

Private grants 1.014.910 14.910 163.212 148.302 

Charges for service 42.000 42.000 66.000 24.00n 

Total revenues l.881.910 881.910 1,054,212 172.302 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current function: 

    

Community development: 

    

Salaries and benefits 818.413 633.114 394.952 238.162 

Legal and professiiinal 322.000 388.000 327.24)6 60,704 

Supplies arid other operating 110,175 95.175 104.500 (9,325) 

Rent and utilities 24.000 36.000 6,528 29.472 

Tra‘ el and meetings 

 

6.000 5,388 612 

CDE management fee 18.000 1X.000 5,003 12.997 

Debt service: 

    

Pnncipal 

  

24.318 (24.3181 

Interest 

  

3,710 (3,7101 

Capital outlay 

  

177.744 (177.7441 

Total expenditures 1. 19).-388 1.176.289 1.049.439 126.850 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 589.371 (294.379) 4.773 45,452 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

    

Transfers an 16.800 16.800 28.169 11.369 

Proceeds from right-of-use asset 

  

172.765 172.765 

Total other financing sources 1 6N10 16.800 /00.934 184,134 

Net change in fund halance S 606.122 S (277.579) )05.707 S 229.586 

FUND BALANCE 

    

Beginning of year 

  

911.466 

 

End of year 

  

1.117.173 

 

The note, t() regtured .upplementary Inf()rmatl(m are au mtegral part ot this schedule 
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EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 
Baton Rouge. Louisiana 

NOTES TO REQLTIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

NOTE 1 - BUDGETS 

Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting 

A proposed budget is prepared and submitted by management of the Authority prior to 
the beginning of each tiscal period. A budget summary and notice of a public hearing 
is published, with the public hearing being conducted prior to the adoption of the 
budget. 

The annual operatine budeet is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
At the end of the tiscal period. unexpended appropriations automatically lapse. Budget 
amendments are approved by the Authority and are included in the financial statements. 

In connection with budget preparation, a portion of the unassigned fund halance of an 
individual fund may be assiened for expenditures of the subsequent period. Such 
designations represent the extent to which the fund halance is used to balance the 
subsequent period's operating budget of that fund_ as reflected in the legally adopted 
budget. There were no such assignments in 2023. 

Basis of Accounting 

The Authority's budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. which 
is described in Note 1 to the Authority's tinancial statements for the period ended 
December 31, 2023. 

The Office of Community Development (OCD) CDBG HOME Fund accounts for the 
charges for services to the City of Baton Rouge and Parish of East Baton Rouge fbr the 
administration of the Community Planning and Development grant programs from the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The OCD fund is reported as a 
major special revenue fund. The Authority did not adopt a hudget for the OCD fund for 
the 2023 tiscal year as there was no anticipated activity. As such, no Statement of 
Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget (GAAP Basis) and 
Actual is presented. 
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Exhibit C 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND 
OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

For the year enclecl December 31. 2023 

Agency Head: Gretchen Sterners, Vice President of Planning and Policy 

Purpose Amount       

Salary 170,808 

Benefits - retirernent 20.500 
Benetits - insurance 6.545 
Cel l phone al lowance 1.140 

Total 198.993 

39 



OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS 



FAULK&V VINKLER 
CPAs - BUSINESS ADVISOftS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners 
East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority, 

D/B/A Build Baton Rouge 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the Louisiana Governrnental Audit Guide and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE (the Authority) as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Authority's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Authority's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weakness. 

40 
6811. Jefferson Highway • Baton Rouge, LA 70806 • (225) 927-6811 • Facsimile: (225) 932-0000 

1404 S. Burnside Avenue • Gonzales, LA 70737 • (225) 647-6811 



Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Authority's Board and management, 
the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal and state agencies, and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Clj  

Certified Public Accountants 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 24, 2024 
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EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

SCHEI)ULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

1) Summary of Auditors' Results: 

A) The type of repo ssued on the tinancial staternents: Unmodified opinion. 

B) Significant deficiencies in intenial control were disclosed bv the audit of financial 
statements. None reported. 

C) Matenal weaknesses: None. 

D) Noncompliance which is rnaterial to the tinancial sta ernents: None. 

2) Findings relating to the financial statements reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standcwds. None. 
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EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge. Louisiana 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

2022-001 Local Government Budget Act 

Tl is tinding has been resolved as of the year ended December 31. 2023. 
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Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 
Baton Rouge. Louisiana 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 



FAULK& 1NKLER 
CPAs - BUSINESS ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Commissioners 
East Baton Rouge Redevelopment Authority, 
D/B/A Build Baton Rouge 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in 
the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period 
January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. The EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE's (The Authority) management is responsible for those 
C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Authority has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified in 
LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. Additionally, LLA has agreed 
to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be 
suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of 
this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and schedule of exceptions are as follows: 

I) Written Policies and Procedures:  

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders, (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

111. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies 
and procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all 
collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with 
outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic 
ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for 
employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 
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Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts. (2) standard tenns and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process. and (5) monitoring-  process. 

vii. Travel and Expense Rehnbursement. including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds 
by category of expense, (3 ) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

Credit Curds (and debit curds, fuel curds, purchase curds, if applicabk). including (I) how 
cards are to be controlled. (2) allowable business uses. (3) documentation requirements, (4) 
required approvers of statements. and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g.. determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42.1111-
1121. (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3 ) system to monitor possible 
ethics violations. and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that 
all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure:EMMA reporting 
requirements. (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) deht service requirements. 

xi. Information Technoloff Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification 
of critical data and frequency of data backups. (2) storage of backups in a separate physical 
location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testingiverification that backups can be 
restored. (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available 
system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools 
needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements.. for (1) agency 
responsihilities and prohibitions. (2) annthal employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

2) Board or Finance Committee: 

A. Obtain and inspect the boar& finance committee nunutes for the fiscal penod, as well as the hoard's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and 

i. Ohserve that the boardffinance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the hoard's enahling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model. ohserve whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly hudget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, 
quarterly budget-to-actual. at a minimum, on propnetary funds. and semi-annual hudget- to-
actual. at a minimum. on all special revenue timds..-Ilternatively. jar those entities reporting 
on the not-far-profit accounting model. observe thut thc minutes rcfrrenced or included 
financial activity relating to public fluids if those public funds comprised more thun l 0° o qf the 
entity's collections during thc fiscal period. 

For governmental entities. obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance 
in the prior year audit report, ohserve that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal 
period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund halance 
in the general fund. 

Observe 1,‘ hether the boardifinance committee received written updates of the progress of 
resolving audit findings), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting 
until the findings are considered fully resolved. 



3) Bank Reconciliati(7ns: 

A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts t or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal penod, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding hank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and ohserve that 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically lotmed); 

Bank reconciliations include wntten evidence that a member of management or a hoard 
member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each hank 
reconciliation 1A thin 1 month of the date the reconciliation 1A as prepared (e.g.. initialed and 
dated or electronically logged), and 

Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconcilinQ items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers): 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal penod where deposits for cashichecksimoney orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

B. For each deposit site selected. ohtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (e.g., 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), ohtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee joh duties (if there are no written policies or procedures, then inquire of employees ahout 
their job duties) at each collection location. and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each 
collection location such that 

i. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawersiregisters; 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparingimaking 
bank deposits, unless another employee)official is responsible for reconcilina collection 
documentation (e.g.. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit; 

Each employee responsihle for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledQer or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsihle for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit; and 

iv. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, hy revenue source andlor agency fund additions, is (are) not also 
responsihle for collecting cash, unless another emplovee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

C. Ohtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft coverinit all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe that the hond or insurance policy for theft was in force during the fiscal 
period. 

I). Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 hank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). 
Alternatively, the practitioner may use a sourcv document other than hank statements when selecting 
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the deposit dates for testing. such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book. etc. 
Ohtain supporting documentation tbr each of the 1() deposits and: 

Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numhered. 

Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts. system reports. and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one husiness day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 nules from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 

purchases): 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listine is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 51. 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating 
to employee job duties (if the aQency has no written policies and procedures. then inquire of employees 
about their job duties). and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiatin2 a purchase request, approving a purchase. and 
placing an order or making the purchase; 

At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

iii. The employee responsible tbr processing payments is prohibited from addinemodifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewine changes to 
vendor files; 

Either the employeeiofficial responsible for smning checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

v. (_Inly employeestofficials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether throutth automated clearinehouse (ACI), electronic fimds transfer 
(EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

[Note: Findings related to controls that constrain the legal authority of certain public officials ie g., 
mayor of u Lawrason Act municipality) should not be mported.] 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and ohtain managentent's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements tbr each location, 
obtain supporting documentation tbr each transaction, and 

i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether hy paper or electronic means, matched the related 
orminal iteinized invoice and supporting docuinentation indicates that deliverables included on 
the invoice were received by the entity. and 

Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial!date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above, as applicahle. 
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D.	 Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
OA, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements 
if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved hy only those persons 
authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved by the required 
number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic payments were made from 
the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative 
month and/or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards): 

A. Obtain from management a listing, of all active credit cards, hank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase 
cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Ohtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management. randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for 
each card (for a dehit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement). Obtain supporting 
documentation. and 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically 
approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances requiring such 
approval that may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, such as the mayor of 
a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported); and 

ii. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #6B ahove. excludin.d, 
fuel cards. randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and 
obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g.. each card should have 1(1 transactions 
subject to inspection). For each transaction, observe that it is supported hy (1) an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public 
purpose. and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For 
missing receipts. the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether 
management had a compensating control to address missing receipts. such as a "missing receipt 
statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transac-tions): 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements and ohtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected 

If reimbursed using a per diem. observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration ( www .gsa.gov); 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs. observe that the reimbursement is supported hy an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased: 
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Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required hy Written Policies and Procedures procedure 
ti A(vii ); and 

Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved. in writing, by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

8) Contracts: 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supphes, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternatively• the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 

Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excludmg the practitioner's contract, and 

Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised). if required hy law; 

Observe whether the contract was approved hy the governing body/board. if required hy policy 
or law (e.g.. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

If the contract was amended (e.g.. change order), observe that the onginal contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e.g., if approval is required fbr any amendment, the documented approval); and 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period tbr each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice. agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and 
related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

9) Payroll and Personnel: 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, ohtain related 
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel 
files. 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure ti9A above. ohtain attendance records and leave docurnentation for the pay period, 
and 

i. Observe that all selected ernployees or officials docurnented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory); 

Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials: 

Observe that any leave accnied or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records; and 

Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary!pay rate 
fbund within the personnel file. 
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C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination 
payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the 
employees or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official's 
authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the termination payment 
to entity policy. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related arnounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, 
garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have 
heen filed. by required deadlines. 

10)Ethics: 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 09A Obtain 
ethics documentation from management. and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employeerofficial completed one 
hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42. 1170: and 

ii. Ohserve whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each employee 
and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, 
as applicable. 

B. Inquire anðtor observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required hy R.S. 
42:1170. 

11) Debi Service: 

A. Obtain a listing of bondsinotes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal penod and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for 
each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by deht covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset funds. or other funds required hy the debt covenants). 

12) Fraud Notice: 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation. and observe that the entitv reported the misappropriation( s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the Authority in which the entity is domiciled as required 
by R.S. 24.523. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and wehsite, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation. fraud, waste. or ahuse of public funds. 



13) Information Technology Disaster RecorerWBusiness Continuity: 

A. Perform the following procedures. verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has hacked up its critical data 
(if there is no written documentation. then inquire of personnel responsihle for hacking up 
critical data) and observe evidence that such hackup (a) occurred within the past week, (h) was 
not stored on the government's local server or network. and (c) was encrypted. 

ii. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its 
back-ups can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel 
responsihle for testing:verifying hackup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

iii. Ohtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management dernonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

B. Randornly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated ernployees if less than 5) using the list of 
terrninated employees obtained in procedure 49C. Ohserve evidence that the selected terminated 
employees have heen removed or disahled from the network. 

C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtain 
cybersecurity training documentation from management. and observe that the documentation demonstrates 
that the following employees/officials with access to the agency's information technology assets have 
completed cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42.1267. The requirements are as follows. 

• Hired before June 9, 2020 - completed the training, and 
• Hired on or after June 9, 2020 - coinpleted the training within 30 days of initial service or employment. 

14) Prevention of Sexual Harassment: 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employeesiofficials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A. obtain 
sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates each employeeiofficial completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during 
the calendar year as required by R.S. 42.343. 

B. Observe that the entitv has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website 
(or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February 1, and ohserve that the report includes the applicahle requirements of 
R.S. 42.344: 

t. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

Number of sexual harassment complaints received hy the agency; 



Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual h:umssment occuned; 

iv. Number of complaints in which the tinding of sexual hara esulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

v. Amount of time it took to eso -e each complaint. 

(continued) 
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EAST BATON ROUGE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
D/B/A BUILD BATON ROUGE 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

SC:HEDITLE OF EXCEPTIONS 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

Exception.): 

No exceptions were found as a result of applyinit the procedures listed ahove, except as follows. 

Written Policies and Procedures: 

1(A)(x) The Authority did not have written policies and procedures that appropriately addresses deht 
service during 2023. 

Bank Reconciliations: 

3(A)(ii) Of the two hank reconciliations selected. both did not include written evidence that a mernber 
of management or a board member who does not handle cash, post lediters, or issue checks has 
reviewed each hank reconciliation. 

Contracts: 

8(A)(ii) Of the five contracts selected, one of the contracts that met criteria for board approval did not 
contain documentation that it was approved by the board. However, the contract was approved hy the 
Chairman of the Board. 

Ethics: 

10(B) The Authority did not appoint an ethics designee as required hy R.S. 42:1170. 

Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity: 

13(A) We performed the procedure and discussed the results with rnanagernent. 
13(C) Of the employees selected. no documentation was provided for employees that demonstrated 
these employees completed the cyhersecurity trainm2. 

Prevention of Sexual Haras.sment: 

14(C) (i through v) The Authority provided a sexual harassment report for the fiscal year; hov, evcr, 
the report wa,, Ltated aller Fehruary 1st. 
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Management's Response: 

Management of the Authority concurs with the exceptions identified are in the process of addressing these 
matters. 

We were engaged by the Authority to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not 
conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion 
or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our 
attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

'ciAAP4 cViA, J te9,), t_c 
Certified Public Accountants 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 24, 2024 
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